AGENDA FOR

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Contact: Josh Ashworth

Direct Line: 0161 253 5667

E-mail: J.R.Ashworth@bury.gov.uk

Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillors : D Vernon (Chair), J Southworth, M Rahimov,
A Arif, T Pilkington, D Green, T Rafig, E Moss, R Bernstein,
G Marsden and C Birchmore

Dear Member/Colleague

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Wednesday, 4 June 2025

Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require

o briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related
report should be contacted.

Notes:




AGENDA

APOLOGIES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider whether
they have an interest in any matters on the agenda and, if so, to formally declare that
interest.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to ask
questions on matters considered at the last meeting and set out in the minutes or on
the agenda for tonight’s meeting.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME

Questions are invited from Elected Members about items on the agenda.
15 minutes will be set aside for Member Question Time, if required.

MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)
Minutes from the meeting held on 01stApril 2025 are attached.

CORPORATE PLAN 2025/26 AND QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT
(Pages 9 - 50)

HOUSING AND PERFORMANCE SUB GROUP DISCUSSION

FORWARD PLANNER 25/26 (Pages 51 - 58)

Scrutiny workplan report attached to discuss upcoming items for the municipal year
URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may
be considered as a matter of urgency.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 5

Minutes of: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 1 April 2025

Present: Councillor D Vernon (in the Chair)
Councillors N Bayley, J Southworth, A Arif, R Bernstein,
C Birchmore, R Gold, G Marsden, E Moss, T Pilkington and
D Green

Also in attendance: Councillor E O’'Brien, Councillor Cummins, Rob Summerfield,
Crispian Logue

Public Attendance: No members of the public were present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence: Paul Lakin Executive Director (Place)

0SC.36 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Paul Lakin Executive Director (Place)

0SC.37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declaration(s) of interest was made:

Councillor C Birchmore - relating to being a member of the Bury Folk Keep it
Green, this related to the Local Plan agenda item

0SC.38 MINUTES

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 6" February 2025 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

0SC.39 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no public questions.

0SC40 MEMBER QUESTION TIME

There were no Member questions.

0SC.41 DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (CONSULTATION DRAFT PLAN)

Councillor Eamon O’Brien Leader of the Council began by presenting an overview of the local
plan, highlighting its significance in strategic planning and land allocation. He emphasized that
this document is crucial for ensuring development happens in a structured and strategic
manner. The local plan is designed to fill in the details around high-level strategic planning,
focusing on how, where, and what development should occur.

One of the key aspects discussed was the consultation process. Councillor Vernon raised a
question about the scope of the consultation and how responses are weighted. Councillor
O’Brien explained that there would be an 8-week consultation period, during which feedback



Page 4
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 1 April 2025

0SC .42

would be balanced with national planning responsibilities. This feedback is essential for
making adjustments before the plan moves to the second phase of consultation, which will be
reviewed by the planning inspectorate.

Affordable housing was another significant topic. Councillor Birchmore expressed concerns
about affordable housing being left until the end of developments. Cris Logue responded by
explaining that Section 106 agreements would ensure affordable plots are identified and built
throughout the development. Councillor O’Brien added that the average market absorption
rate is around 50 units per year, which is typical for developments of this scale.

The discussion also touched on specific site issues, such as the Tetrosyl site. Councillor
O’Brien mentioned that the planning inspector had overturned a decision, affecting the
percentage of affordable housing. This led to a broader conversation about the suitability of
converting properties into children's homes and ensuring these homes are in appropriate
locations.

Infrastructure and developer accountability were key concerns. Councillor Vernon emphasized
the importance of getting infrastructure in place before development starts. Councillor O’Brien
assured that there are powers to hold developers accountable and enforce planning
conditions. He mentioned that planning enforcement powers could be used to halt building if
necessary, ensuring that infrastructure is built into the plan from the start.

Community and leisure facilities were also discussed.

Councillor Southworth raised concerns about the lack of leisure facilities for children. Cris
Logue explained that while there are no specific allocations for play areas, policies seek to
secure community sums through Section 106 agreements. Councillor O’Brien added that an
open space policy is being commissioned to assess local parks and spaces for children and
young people.

Health impact assessments and the inclusion of neurodiversity groups in consultations were
highlighted by Councillor Pilkington. Councillor O’Brien acknowledged the importance of
ensuring these voices are heard and mentioned that adult social care is providing supported
living for those who need it.

Finally, planning enforcement was a topic of concern. Councillor Green questioned the speed
and effectiveness of planning enforcement in the past. Councillor O’Brien assured that
resources are being put in place to deliver the plan effectively and address any issues swiftly.

It Was Agreed:
e The Report and update be Noted

REGENERATION UPDATE

Councillor O'Brien, the Leader and Cabinet Member for Strategic Growth, presenting the
appendices and policy proposals. He provided a brief overview of the presentation and then
invited Rob Summerfield, the Director of Regeneration, to give an update on the regeneration
sites.

Rob Summerfield started by acknowledging the significant progress being made across
various sites. He emphasized that there is a lot happening at different stages and places, and
the Council is trying to adopt a place-based approach to regeneration. This approach aims to
instil confidence that the projects will move forward effectively.

One of the key projects discussed was the Open Fund project, which received funding from
central government. This project includes the Bury market canopy scheme, whichis now on

2



Page 5
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 1 April 2025

site. The new market structures have made a significant visual impact, and the demolition of
associated buildings is progressing well. The project is expected to be completed by the end of
spring next year, with the flexible building next door planned to be an event and retail space by
the third quarter of 2026.

Rob highlighted the challenges faced with utility companies, particularly in moving and
redirecting utilities. He mentioned significant issues on both the Heywood and Radcliffe sites
but noted that the Council has managed to address these problems effectively. The Radcliffe
Hub Leisure Centre project, which includes a library and community facility, is well advanced.
The frame is nhow complete, despite encountering an unidentified sewer that required quick
action and lobbying by politicians to facilitate a build-over agreement.

The discussion then moved to the Millgate area development. The Council has a joint venture
to develop the shopping centre, which is trading well above pre-pandemic levels. However,
retail trends are changing, and the asset needs to be adjusted to fit modern retail uses. The
strategic regeneration framework for the Millgate area was considered by members, and
significant reconfiguration of retail elements is planned to ensure sustainability.

Another important project is the Pyramid Park housing development. The Council has secured
grant money for site remediation and addressing biodiversity issues. Remediation work is
scheduled for this year, followed by marketing for housing development next year. This project
is key because it is adjacent to the interchange and must be developed in line with it.

Rob also mentioned various road improvement schemes funded through the city region central
transport settlement and housing schemes discussed at the meeting. These include Green
Street School and St E, with wider allocations for housing made through the regional spatial
strategy. The Council has aspirations for employment at the Bradley Gold Asset Council
homes, which is an old asset generating significant income.

The discussion then turned to the Council's corporate strategy and asset management. The
regeneration missionis closely linked to the corporate strategy, and significant progress has
been made over the last five years. The Council has implemented a corporate landlord model
to manage assets and buildings effectively. This includes combining asset management and
facilities management teams, implementing a corporate compliance regime, and investing in
facilities and integrating systems like Concerto and Unit 4.

Councillor O'Brien discussed the importance of integrating buses and trams and the need for
frequent feeder buses from outlying parts. The Council is actively lobbying for additional
services and changes to the existing network to improve accessibility for the elderly and
disabled.

The Northern Gateway project was also a key topic of discussion. This project aims to attract
advanced manufacturing companies and create employment opportunities. The Council is
working on master planning, transport infrastructure, and utilities to unlock the site's full
potential. The project is complex and long-term, but the Council is confident in its ability to
deliver it successfully.

The meeting concluded with a discussion on the strategic direction of the regeneration projects
and the importance of aligning various initiatives to achieve the Council's goals. Councillor
O'Brien emphasized the need for continued collaboration and investment to ensure the
successful delivery of the projects.

It Was Agreed:

e The update be noted



Page 6
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 1 April 2025

0SC.43

HOUSING 12 MONTH UPDATE

Councillor Cummins cabinet member for housing services began the meeting by providing an
overview of the housing services transition back into the Council. She highlighted the
establishment of the Housing Subcommittee and its role in the improvement programme and
governance structures. He emphasized the momentum of delivery and the positive impact of
the subcommittee.

Councillor Cummins discussed the improvement programme established over the last 12
months, focusing on culture and communications through workshops. He noted that the
workforce has been highly engaged, which he found very encouraging. The mock inspection
highlighted key areas for development and provided assurance on compliance, which has
seen significant improvement. Collaboration with GMCA on homelessness was also
mentioned, with positive outcomes and best practices being shared.

Councillor Cummins outlined the plans for the next three months, including repairs, assets,
and property restructuring. He mentioned the development of a long-term housing IT plan,
refreshing the first-year business plan, and agreeing on budgets. He acknowledged the
valuable contributions of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in providing challenges and
familiarization with regulatory frameworks.

Councillor Cummins introduced the new director of Housing Sian Grant, who provided a brief
introduction and shared initial observations. The Chief Housing Officer emphasized the need
to improve key services delivered to tenants, particularly repairs and handling complaints. He
acknowledged the challenges ahead but expressed confidence in the team's ability to address
them.

A significant discussion revolved around the handling of anti-social behaviour. One councillor
highlighted historical issues with reluctance to engage with tenants exhibiting ASB. The Chief
Housing Officer acknowledged these issues and mentioned the implementation of new policies
and external training for housing officers. He noted that recent court cases leading to evictions
were a positive step in addressing ASB and restoring tenant confidence.

The need for better support from the police in dealing with ASB was discussed. Housing
officers often felt exposed when dealing with such issues due to a lack of support from the
police. The Chief Housing Officer mentioned ongoing training and one-to-one sessions with
line managers to build housing officers' confidence.

Active listening to tenant feedback was emphasized as crucial. Various channels, including the
Tenants First Story and the Housing Advisory Board, were mentioned as means of
engagement. Successful clean-up events and estate improvements were noted as positive
steps. Measuring tenant satisfaction at the point of service delivery was highlighted as a way
to track improvements more accurately.

The difficulty in finding suitable candidates for key positions, such as heads of compliance and
repairs, was acknowledged. The Chief Housing Officer mentioned ongoing recruitment efforts
and the challenges faced in attracting the right talent.

The rise in disrepair claims was discussed, attributed to targeted efforts by repair companies.
Measures to address record-keeping and recruitment of surveyors and tradespeople were
outlined. The Chief Housing Officer emphasized the importance of ensuring tenants live in
good standard accommodation.

The Chief Housing Officer outlined a comprehensive work plan and improvement plan for the
next 12 months. He stressed the importance of honest conversations with tenants and

4



Page 7

0SC.44

0SC.45

0SC.46

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 1 April 2025

members to ensure transparency. He expressed optimism about achieving more good news
stories and improvements in tenant services.

Councillor Cummins acknowledged the significant improvements made and the ongoing
challenges. He committed to continued scrutiny and updates from the Housing Subcommittee.
He expressed confidence in the direction of the housing services and the team's ability to
maintain momentum.

It Was Agreed:
e The update be noted

HOUSING SUB GROUP UPDATE TO COMMITTEE

Councillor Vernon the chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee along with the Housing
Subgroup gave a brief overview of the report from the housing Sub Group. Highlighting the
work of the sub group helping to ensure collaboration between officers and councillors during
the transition.

It was proposed that the committee continue having subgroups that meet at least once a
guarter. These subgroups will focus on housing and performance aspects, with housing being
the major focus but also including performance aspects. Councillor Vernon suggested that the
composition of the two subgroups could differ, noting that the performance subgroup was
active last time. Members interested in joining the performance subgroup should volunteer,
and the subgroups are open to all committee members.

Dates for the subgroup meetings will be setand added to the calendar, with an emphasis on
ensuring the meetings are productive and inclusive. The committee agreed to follow the plan
going forward into the next year, focusing on areas such as housing, standard trainings,
budget strategies, global operations, regeneration, and community safety plan updates.
Members are encouraged to suggest additional topics for future meetings.

Councillor Vernon emphasized the importance of prioritizing attendance and participation,
inviting members to join meetings even if they cannot attend all sessions. Action items include
setting dates for subgroup meetings and adding them to the calendar, encouraging members
to volunteer for subgroups, and suggesting topics for future meetings.

It Was agreed that

e To keep the sub group into next year with agreement to alternate between
Housing and Performance

e Dates to be put into calendars quarterly alternating between Housing and
Performance

FORWARD PLAN

There was a discussion around the forward plan, the Chair advised all members to advise if
there is anything in particular they would like added to the forward planner for the next cycle of
meetings.

URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business.



Page 8
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 1 April 2025

COUNCILLOR D VERNON
Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 10.00 pm)



Page 9 Agenda ltem 6

Classification: Decision Type:
Open Non-Key
Report to: Cabinet Date: 11 June 2025

Year End Corporate Plan Performance & Delivery Report and
Launch of 2025/26 Corporate Plan

Report of Cabinet Member for Corporate Affairs and HR

Subject:

Summary

In April 2024 the Cabinet approved the Council’'s Corporate Plan for 2024/25. The Plan sets out
the Council’s strategic priorities and delivery objectives for the financial year and the role of the
Council in delivering the overarching vision of the borough’s LET'S Do It! Strategy.

The Plan was agreed in the context of the Council’s significant financial challenges with both
reduced funding and increasing demand contributing to a reported circa. £30m financial gap in
the Council’s finances over the coming three years. The agreed Plan was structured around
three overarching priorities:

e Sustainable Inclusive Growth
¢ Improving Children’s Lives
e Tackling Inequalities

As part of the Plan, key objectives were described against each of these priorities, together with
a clear set of quarterly delivery milestones. The Plan also included objectives and milestones
for the enabling actions needed to ensure the organisational conditions necessary to deliver

the priorities.

To support monitoring of the Plan, alongside measuring delivery of the agreed milestones
(Appendix One), an initial set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) was set out. These have
since been revised following operational feedback and the current suite of delivery KPIs is
provided in Appendix Three.

Following Cabinet approval of the plan in April 2024, the Council has responded to a number of
unforeseen demands and additional pressures. Most notably this includes responding to the
outcomes of the local area SEND inspection, published on 7 May and preparation for the
General Election which was announced on 22 May and took place in July 2024. In addition, in
December 2024 the Council’s external auditors presented their judgements in the areas of the
Council's Value for Money arrangements for 2021/22 and 2023/24 resulting in an urgent action
plan being drawn up atthe end of Quarter Three. These events have had an impact on the
delivery against milestones which was fully assessed at each quarter.

This report describes the significant progress made in the fourth and final quarter of the financial
year (January to March 2025) against the Corporate Plan priorities and objectives and provides
a year end position on delivery completed as planned.



Page 10

In addition, it describes the process undertaken to develop the Corporate Plan for 2025/26. The
proposed draft of the 2025/26 Corporate Plan on a page and associated delivery milestones are
provided at Appendix Four for sign off.

Recommendation(s)

Cabinet is asked to

¢ Note the year end position on progress against the Corporate Plan 2024/25.
e Approve the draft Corporate Plan 2025/26

Reasons for recommendation(s)

To enable transparency and robust monitoring of performance and delivery of the Corporate
Plan.

Alternative options considered and rejected

Not applicable

Report Author and Contact Details:

Name: Helen Corbishley

Position: Head of Performance and Delivery
Department: Corporate Core

E-mail: h.corbishley@bury.gov.uk

Background

This report describes the significant progress made in the fourth and final quarter of the financial
year (January to March 2025) against the Corporate Plan priorities and objectives and provides
a year end position on delivery completed as planned.

In addition, it describes the process undertaken to develop the Corporate Plan for 2025/26. The
proposed draft of the 2025/26 Corporate Plan on a page and associated delivery milestones are
provided at Appendix Four for sign off.

Links with the Corporate Priorities:

This report supplements the State of the Borough Outcomes Report in terms of providing further
information on the contribution of the Council to the 2030 vision. The Corporate Plan priorities
are linked to the seven obijectives of the LET'S vision.

Equality Impact and Considerations:

An EIA was completed at the launch of the corporate plan for 2024/2025 ensuring inclusion was
at the heart of the Council’s corporate plan. This report demonstrates the continuing
commitment to inclusion in all that we do as a council.




Page 11

Environmental Impact and Considerations:

There are no specific environmental considerations within this report however the data tracks
progress towards the environmental commitments within the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Assessment and Mitigation of Risk:

Risk / opportunity Mitigation

Lack of capacity to deliver against the | Further attention will be given to the
Corporate Plan priorities which reduces the | activities rated as Amber to ensure that
Council's ability to achieve the LET'S Vision | resources are used appropriately to
support priorities, however in some
cases reprofiling may be required on a
case-by-case basis.

Legal Implications:
To be completed by the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
1.

Financial Implications:
To be completed by the Council’s Section 151 Officer.
2.

Appendices:

Appendix One: Corporate Plan: Agreed Delivery Plan as of December 2024
Appendix Two: Delivery Against Quarter Four Milestones

Appendix Three: Performance Against Key Performance Indicators
Appendix Four: Corporate Plan 2025/26 Objectives and Milestones
Appendix Five: Corporate Plan 2025/26 Key Performance Indicators

Background papers:

Report to Cabinet, 17 April 2024: Corporate Plan 2024/25

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this report.


https://councildecisions.bury.gov.uk/documents/s39661/Corporate%20Plan%202024-25%20V2.pdf

Page 12

Term Meaning Term Meaning
ASC Adult Social Care HIS Highways improvement Strategy
ASCOF Adult Social Care Outcomes HR Human Resources
Framework
ATF Active Travel Fund IAPT Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies
BAM Bury Art Museum ILACS Inspecting Local Authority Children's
Services
CIN Children In Need KPI Key Performance Indicator
CLA Children Looked After LED Light Emitting Diode
CME Children Missing Education LGA Local Government Association
CO2 Carbon Dioxide MCF Mayor's Challenge Fund
COPE Construction, Occupancy, MDC Mayoral Development Corporation
Protection, and Exposure
CP Child Protection MTFS Medium Term Financial Strategy
CPP Child Protection Plan NHS National Health Service
CRSTS City Region Sustainable NHSE National Health Service England
STA Transport Settlement (CRSTS)
and Streets for All
CSP Community Safety Partnership NLTG North Lancs Training Group
DfE Department for Education NOMIS Service provided by the UK Office for
National Statistics (ONS) that
provides official census and labour
market statistics
EET Education, Employment, or PDR Personal Development Review
Training
EHCP Education Health Care Plan PRU Pupil Referral Unit
EHE Elective Home Education PSHE Personal, Social, Health and
Economic
EIA Equality Impact Assessment PSV Project Safety Valve
ELT Executive Leadership Team RAMLIB Ramsbottom Library
EV Electric Vehicle RIBA Royal Institute of British Architects
EYFSP Early Years Foundation Stage SEND Special Educational Needs and
Profile Disabilities
FAP Future Asset Plan SHDF Social Housing Development Fund
FOI Freedom of Information SLA Service Level Agreement
FTE Full Time Equivalent SMT Senior Management Team
FY Financial Year STH Six Town Housing
GM Greater Manchester TBC To Be Confirmed
GMCA Greater Manchester Combined | UKSPF UK Shared Prosperity Fund
Authority
GMP Greater Manchester Police VCFA Voluntary, Community & Faith
Alliance
GP General Practitioner VCFSE Voluntary, Community, Faith and

Social Enterprise




Page 13

Corporate Plan Performance & Delivery
2025/25 Quarter Four Report and the 2025/26 Corporate Plan

Last April the 2024/25 Corporate Plan was published and set out the Council's strategic
priorities and delivery objectives for the year.

The Corporate Plan has been designed to reflect a tighter set of corporate priorities following
feedback from the last LGA Peer Review in December 2023, hence the focus on the three
priorities with a streamlined set of objectives. The priorities overlay the “business as usual’
departmental functions which are described separately in service planning documents.

m Council Priorities — LET’S Do It! Enabling Actions 2024/25

Sustainable Inclusive Growth: Refresh the LET'S vision and partnership
Deliver Housing pipeline
Levelling Up Funded sites; Prestwich; Ramsbottom &
Whitefield Plans; Millgate Strategic Regeneration Framework
Local Plan update

* Northern Gateway Masterplan

« Carbon Neutral Bu||d capacity:

Complete and deliver the budget:
Reducing demand; driving growth

Member development
+ Development of people and
Improvlng Children’s Lives: processes in Corporate Core and
Educational Improvement (Attendance, Attainment, Finance
Academisation) » Workforce Strategy (Attraction,
SEND Improvement and delivery of Project Safety Valve Recruitment and Retention)

Social Care Improvement (Edge of Care; Family
Safeguarding Model; Fostering & Family Hubs)

Youth - Youth Justice Review and Service refresh Fegutsior readiness:

« Children’s (Social Care and SEND)
* Social Housing

Tackling Inequalities: + Care Quality Commission
Wider Determinants — Work, Housing, Anti-Poverty Strategy,

Education, Environment and Skills Future Asset Plan and Rationalisation:
Behaviour — Physical activity (Wellness), Food, Substance « Aligned to neighbourhood model and
Misuse agile working

» Prioritise system wide prevention and targeted intervention e.g.
Adult Social Care, CVD Pathways
People and Community Plans including Social Value strategy
Social Housing Insource, Integration and Improvement

Progress Since Approval of the 2024/25 Corporate Plan

The table in Appendix Two provides a snapshot overview of progress against the Quarter Four
milestones and therefore the final position of year end for 2024/25 Corporate Plan delivery. This
review of progress has been further supplemented by information gathered for the latest
Leader’s statement to Council.

The last report at Quarter Three described a positive forecast for completion of all milestones at
year end. There have however been further unprecedented capacity requirements that has
caused further delay on a small number of milestones which are being rolled into next year’'s
plan for priority delivery. This includes the publication of both the Workforce and
Communications Strategy. The Workforce Strategy has been delayed due to leadership
turnover and delivery milestones have been plotted across 2025/26 for delivery in the next
Corporate Plan. The Communications Strategy has only been delayed slightly and due for
completion in early Quarter One of 2025/26.



Page 14

Free Special Schools 2 and 3 are also marked red against planned activity during 2024/25.
Work is continuing to work to plan that these schools will be delivered but the Council is yet to
receive formal notification from the new government on significant build milestones.

Sustainable Inclusive Growth

Key Achievements:

e Permission has been granted to seek a partnership with a build-to-rent operator to
convert the Humphrey House site into 74 new homes in the town centre which will
support the continued delivery of a balanced and diverse housing supply as part of the
Council's housing strategy.

e Work has started on School Street, a disused brownfield site in Radcliffe to develop 90
new family homes of which 22 will be affordable homes.

e Areport on Bury's new Local Plan was presented at Cabinet on 5" March 2025 which
provided a strong policy basisto assess and manage future development in the borough
including the key strategic sites that are identified in the Places for Everyone Plan.

e All activity has been completed on the Fletcher Fold site for the start of the build of 43
affordable homes for older people.

e The planned demolition works to enable the beginning of the Flexihall main works has
been completed and the procurement for the Flexihall operator has been progressed
through an expression of interest process.

e The preparation for the handover of the Radcliffe Enterprise Centre has been delayed
slightly due to the construction contract, expenditure into the next year has been
approved with GMCA to secure the continued delivery of the project.

e There has also been a delay on the development of the indoor market strategy and its
subsequent approval. This has been carried over into the Corporate Plan for 2025/26.

e The Future Assets Programme (FAP) has developed and implemented an estate
rationalisation plan during Quarter Four to support the future wider estates strategy which
is also included in the Corporate Plan for 2025/26.

Improving Children’s Lives

Key Achievements:

e Since the start of the year, five Ofsted inspections have taken place in Bury schools.
Published reports confirm an improving picture inthe strength of leadership and positive
outcomes across Bury schools.

e The first Education Safeguarding Conference was held in February, targeted at head
teachers and Designated Safeguarding Officers. The 150 delegates heard from a variety
of guest speakers; the event was a great success.

e Data received in the last quarter shows school attendance has continued to improve for
the 3rd year running. The improvements have been supported by the strong collaborative
relationship between the School Attendance Team and schools, improving systems and
implementing the statutory DfE guidance.

e Average caseloads for children’s social workers are now at the lowest number since the
ILACS inspection (15.5 per worker). The volume of new work has moderated to levels in



Page 15

line with other similar areas in the early part of 2025 and there is nhow greater consistency
in adherence to the cornerstones of good social work practice (visits, direct work,
supervision, review). The presence of more permanent staff in post is beginning to
improve the consistency of relationships with children and families and to also improve
the quality of practice.

Improved support for children with SEND by schools and the local authority has led to
long-term moderation inthe number of new requests to assess for an Education, Health
and Care plan and in the number of new plans being issued — both these measures are
moving into line with the national average. Timeliness of assessment for an EHCP
remains relatively strong and adherence to expectations around annual reviews is much
improved for children in year groups moving between education phases. Relationship
with parents and parent/carer groups is better, with the improved timeliness and quality of
EHCPs reviews for children moving into school, or between schools being recognised.
There is still much to do, but progress is being made.

Approval was given for a new wing to be built at Millwood school to improve the
educational experience for children with special needs. Creating more capacity at
Millwood is a priority element of the council’'s plans to improve special needs provision in
the borough. This would meet increasing demand in Bury, and reduce the need to place
children with independent providers

Over the past two months Connexions have enrolled 62 young people in a variety of
courses, including construction courses with Skills CC, employability courses with NLTG
and the Growth Company, and English and maths functional skills courses with a variety
of tuition companies.

The Council achieved the Constella Social Value Award in Quarter Four following on
from the work with Skills CC to initiate the construction programme above.

Children’s Services have started to promote Family Help Drop In’s via social media
platforms. Drop ins are being delivered in schools and community venues in
neighbourhoods aimed at providing families with easy access to help and support.

The new team around the school approach Multi-Agency Family Help has commenced
and we have started to deliver this with 7 schools. This scheme is in place to provide
activities and food for children who are in receipt of benefit related free school meals to
ensure they are not disadvantaged during school holiday periods.

The Council continues to work in partnership with partners to reduce the risk and
devastating impact of knife crime. The Youth Service has been involved in developing
‘knife is a life’ PSHE lesson for schools to deliver, and thinking about how we reach those
young people who are electively home educated. This has included the Stop the Bleed
Campaign, a partnership project to deliver short intervention/discussion around lifesaving
first aid for knife related injuries.

The fostering service launched the second Mockingbird constellation on 3rd February
2025.

Bury’s Next Chapter hub for care experienced young people based at 6 Knowsley Place
is going from strength to strength and is offering a range of help and support to young
people. They can access support in relation to employment, education, housing, cooking,
health issues, leisure etc in a familiar and friendly environment. This offer will continue to
grow over coming months.



Page 16

There has been delays on the delivery of both two new Free Special Schools at year
end. These projects are led nationally by the Department for Education (DfE) and further
confirmation on progress is awaited. Locally we have been working with DfE to
communicate the demand for these schools as part of SEND improvement and planning
within the Project Safety Valve (PSV) programme.

The Create Attendance pledge and strategy are slightly delayed but will be in place by
Quarter One 2025/26.

The Chesham Family hub is also delayed slightly due to working through procurement to
commission building works. Once complete, which is expected in 2025/26, a consultation
will take place locally about the service requirements in the area.

The Early Help offer re-launch is slightly delayed, all work has been complete however
the communications for the launch have been shifted to Aprilto ensure a smooth and
successful process.

Tackling Inequalities

Key Achievements:

A new Community Mental Health and Disability Hub for local Bury people is being
created through investment from both Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust and the
Council. The investment will improve access to a range of specialist mental health and
learning disability services for thousands of people. It will also create a better working
environment for over 300 staff, including nurses, social workers, occupational therapists,
psychiatrists, clinical psychologists and speech and language therapists.
Work has started on a new ‘pocket park’ which will bring more green space to the heart
of Radcliffe. Radcliffe Pocket Park is being created with £250,000 of funding from the UK
Shared Prosperity Fund and £20,000 of investment from Bury Council. The scheme will
complement the wider town centre regeneration that is taking place, such as the new
Radcliffe Hub and Radcliffe Enterprise Centre, both nearby.
The former Whitefield Library is set to be purchased by NHS Property Services. This
acquisition will enable NHS partners to work to secure a redevelopment of the ex-library
site for health services.
The peer networks for autistic adults, families and carers have all been set up as
planned.
New strategies for Carers, Sensory Needs and Extra Care have all been completed as
planned and either approved or scheduled for approval at Cabinet.
A LGA Adults Peer Challenge was completed in Quarter Four with positive feedback
across many areas, this included:
o Staff across the adult social care directorate in Bury demonstrate a passion and
positivity for their work
o Significant progress has been made in reducing waiting lists for new assessments,
reviews, and occupational therapy.
o The integration of health and social care services at both operational and strategic
levels in the council is commendable and serves as a model of best practice.
o The directorate was able to demonstrate to the peer challenge team clear
oversight in data management, quality assurance and financial control.



Page 17

Enabling Actions

e Whilst not an original objective for the 2024/25 Corporate Plan, following the review from
auditors in December, six new assurance boards and associated governance has been
set up with most boards now meeting for the third or fourth time. This structure is
essential in providing transparency and robustness to decision making.

e Our 2025/26 budget was set and MTFS successfully updated in Quarter Four.

e The LET'S Do It! Strategy was refreshed and finalised in the last quarter including a
review of the outcomes and summary of what has been delivered so far.

¢ In the March Cabinet meeting an updated agreement with the VCFA was agreed for
partnership and community working going forward.

e There has been a slight delay on the production of the new Communications Strategy,
this is due to be presented to the Executive Team in early May and will follow with further
sign off as required.

e The Council workforce strategy was not delivered in 2024/25, this has been rolled over
into the Corporate Plan for 2025/26.

Development of the 2025/26 Corporate Plan

The context for the Corporate Plan for 2025/26 is similar to that of previous years. Despite
positive trajectories on the delivery of the content of the 2024/25 plan there continues to be a
significant financial gap as described in the Council's MTFS. In addition, as experienced
elsewhere, there continues to be increased pressure on the Council and it's partners due to
the increase in the volume and complexity of demand.

Despite the scale of ambition of delivery in 2024/25, and alongside those other unforeseen
activities that required additional capacity, most of the plan was delivered. However, there is
still much work to do to impact against the Council’s three priorities which were always
intended to be multi-year plans, contributing to the LET'S 2030 Strategy. Focus will still
need to continue to be sustained against these priorities to improve outcomes in these
areas.

Whilst some of the focus of the Corporate Plan for 2024/25 was preparatory for the delivery
of large schemes and intervention, the plan for 2025/26 includes clear and tangible
deliverables with principle regeneration sites underway and new services up and running.
The outcomes of upcoming inspections with the CQC and Ofsted will be known and
therefore some space will need to be included for he actions which follow from those
inspections to continue to improve outcomes. In addition, an amount of focus needs to be
aligned with tackling inequalities particularly because as the national and regional integrated
health and care systems are subject to significant change with the national NHS reform
program. The plan will also cover those milestones which were not delivered in 2024/25.

Therefore, the three priorities and an additional the enabling priority will be repeated for the
2025/26 planning year. Key objectives have been described against each of these priorities,
together with a clear set of quarterly delivery milestones. The plan on a page is below and
the proposed delivery milestones at Appendix Four. As per the delivery position at Quarter 4,
any remaining undelivered milestones have been rolled over into this new plan.



Council Priorities — LET’S Do It! 2025/26

Achieving Economic Growth

LET’S Do It! Values & Behaviours

c
2
—
®
2
-
o
7]
(@]
o0
R=
3]
S
T
Q
o

Enabling

Actions

Sustainable Inclusive Growth:
# Deliver the All Age Work and Skills Strategy and Action Plan
* Agree a Local Plan in context of Places for Everyone
* Develop a new Housing Strategy
» Construction of Radcliffe High School, Civic Hub and redevelopment of the Radcliffe Enterprise Centre and Market Chambers
* Progress Bury Town Centre Masterplan projects; NORA (Northern Rock Area), Millgate refurbishment, Indoor Market, Chamberhall Phase 2
* Deliver Prestwich Phase 1
» Design and deliver township development plans for Whitefield & Ramsbottom
» Progress the Northern Gateway scheme: establish MDC; Western Access OBC and first-phase planning
» Continue to deliver the Local Transport Strategy including Bury Interchange improvements, the Highway Improvement Strategy and the active travel programme
» Develop Annual Sustainability Plan and progress Climate Change Strategy including town centre heat network and the EV Charging point network
* Support implementation of flood defence scheme by Environmental Agency

Improving Children’s Lives:
* Progress the SEND Improvement Journey (inc. free special schools)
* Continue the transformation of our Pupil Referral Unit offer
* Progress the Children’s Social Care Improvement journey: embed family safeguarding; develop commissioning strategy and workforce development
* Establish an Education and Inclusion Strategy
* Agree a multi-agency plan in response to the social care reforms, outlined in Keeping Children Safe, Helping Families Thrive and the Children’s Wellbeing and
Education Bill

Tackling Inequalities:
* Deliver the Bury Locality Plan update for health and care transformation in the borough
* Develop the health inequalities strategy and deliver our improvement plan for Adult Social Care
* Accelerate development of the Bury neighbourhood model, in context of GM Live Well approach, including economic inactivity trailblazer pilot
* Update the anti-poverty action plan and evaluate impact
* Develop the Wellness strategy inc. the leisure business case and deliver the Green Flag Parks Programme and Green Spaces Strategy
* Deliver the Culture Strategy through the Community Culture Fund, the annual co-created events programme and repairing the Bury Art Gallery and Ramsbottom
Library roofs
* Implement the New Community Safety Plan
# Deliver on plans to improve social housing, including decarbonisation, and increase tenant satisfaction

Financial Sustainability Workforce, Culture & Inclusion Transformation
* Delivery of MTFS Savings and develop 2026/27 MTFS » Develop HR Service Improvement Plan * |Implementation of the Digital Strategy
+ Refresh of the Capital Programme + Deliver the Inclusion Strategy + Deliver the Unit 4 Upgrade and change plan
* Production of a Commercial Strategy * Quarterly OD programme to embed LETS principles + Confirm the Council’s Corporate Estate Plan
* Improve strategic commissioning and procurement * Ensure continued compliance with PDRs, Mandatory + Increase community engagement through the
* Deliver finance restructure and improvement plan Training and Service Planning, inc. Health & Safety new VCFA SLA and our social cohesion strategy

* Deliver the Council’s Improvement Plan

gT abed



Page 19

e The Plan also includes new objectives and milestones for the enabling actions needed
to ensure the organisational conditions necessary to deliver these priorities. These
objectives and milestones pay particular attention to the external auditor's
recommendations regarding improved governance and robustness around financial
decision making.

¢ A new suite of key performance indicators is also being developed as part of a refreshed
performance framework for the organisation. This isintwo tiers where a set of high-
level indicators which can be benchmarked where appropriate can be utilised for
monitoring the impact of the corporate plan delivery and then a second tier of indicators
which demonstrate activity that is happening within services. The proposed suite of
Corporate Plan KPIs is attached at Appendix Five.

Conclusion

As can be seen from this report, significant work has continued to be undertaken against the
delivery milestones inthe Corporate Plan. Where necessary non-deliverables have been rolled
over into the 2025/26 Corporate Plan with an additional review of delivery milestones to ensure
progress against timelines.



Appendix One: Corporate Plan: Agreed Delivery Plan as of December 2024

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Improving
Children’s
Lives

Quarter 1

Local Plan Reg. 18
notification, Callfor
Sites and Impact
Assessment Scoping
Spurr House - Disposal
strategy agreed
Seedfield, School St
and Green St
commence —c.300
houses/units
Radcliffe CivicHub -
enabling works
completed and main
works commenced

Review SEND
Governance

Updated Personal
Education Plan (PEP) to
strengthen Careers
Information Advice
and Guidance (CIAG)
and transition

Update Primaryin Year
Fair Access Protocol
(IYFAP) Panel & policy
Production of Personal
Independence
Payment (PIP) &
establishment of SEND
Improvementand

Quarter 2

William Kemp Heaton - 100%
affordable housing scheme of
43 unitsincluding 18
specialist/supported units.
Humphrey House —
Procurementbegins (c.65
Units)

Willow St - Supported
housingsite (13 units) to
commence onsite

Flexihall - Construction
contract agreed, enabling
works start

Former police stationsite,
Bury town centre, sale
completion

Spurr House —sale
completion

Star academy in Radcliffe
opensintemporary
accommodation

Corporate Parenting Strategy
refresh complete

Early Help Parent Offerin
development

Quarter 3

Prestwich Phase 1- travel
hub construction begins
Pyramid Park— Procurement
phase complete

Northern Gateway
Supplementary Planning
Documents Consultation
Wheatfields completion - 30
affordable units

Radcliffe library temporarily
relocated

Planning application forfirst
phase Mill Gate
Development strategy forthe
Elms— 24 affordable units

Launch second Mockingbird
constellation

Family Safeguarding
expansion & Partnership
Event

Circles of Influence co-
production event

Final Ofsted ILACS
Monitoring Visit

SEND deep dive on
preparationforadulthood
Department of Education
SEND stocktake visit
Complete revision of the
Local Offerand comms
strategy

Quarter 4

Fletcher Fold - Start on site —
43 affordable homesforolder
people

Flexihall main works begin
Radcliffe enterprise centre
prep for handover & all UKSPF
funds spent

Northern Gateway -
Application submission
(JPAL.1)

Indoor market strategy
approved

First phase of Flexihall
operator procurement
completed

Chesham Family Hub opens
Free Special School 2—
detailed design development
undertaken by DfE

Free Special School 3—
feasibility study commissioned
by DfE

Keeping Families together
teamlaunched

Early Help Offerre-launch
Create Attendance (CME &
EHE) Pledge / Strategy

0z abed



Tackling
Inequalities

Enablers

Assurance Board
(SIAB)

Confirmed funding for
NCAto recruit
additional health
visiting capacity.
Preparing For
Adulthood (PFA)
transition programme
launched

Finalise of Bury
population Health
Strategy

My Happy Mind
commence launchin
Secondary Schools
Additional CAMHS
(Child and Adolescent
Mental Health
Services) capacity
secured

Completion of
Redbank Pavilion/3G
Complete Adult Social
Care (ASC) self-
assessment

Skills strategy launched
Neighbourhood model
update including Housing
integration

Delivery of St Mary's Place
for 18-25-year-olds
Sufficiency strategy
Updated allocations policy
and housing protocol
complete

Social value strategy
complete

Physical Activity strategy and
implementation framework
delivered

Revised Supporting Living
Arrangementsin Persona
Care Home Falls prevention
project finalised.

Launch of Rapid Response
Falls Service

Health and Safety Strategy
Agreed

Roadmap for integration of
Housing services

Delivery of Care Cubedinto
Childrenand Young
People/dinical Health
Commissioning

Autism strategy approved
GM working well strategy
implementationin Bury
Commence fluand COVID
wintervaccination

Launch of Women’s Health
Hub initiative

Promotion of Healthy
Workforce Charterdelivered
Physical Activity framework
rolled out

Devise androll out robust
active travel plans

Localised drug, alcohol and
smoking plans complete
Robust licensing matrix
launched toinform decisions
to reduce harm
Anti-poverty summit & 24/25
strategy refresh

Co-production of LET'S do it!
strategy refresh

Bury Art Museum Roof repair
commences

New Inclusion Strategy and
Equality Objectives Launched
MTFS updated and
consultation on budget
proposals begins
Communications strategy
produced

Establishment of peer
networks - autisticadults and
families/carers

NHS commissioningintentions
and service delivery priorities
for emotional wellbeing and
mental healthin place
Approval of Refurbished GP
provisionin Whitefield to
replace Uplands

Planto improve school
readinessin communitiesin
place

Top Park 3G Pitch complete
Carers Strategy complete
Sensory Strategy complete
Extra care Strategy complete

25/26 budgetsetand MTFS
updated

Relaunch of LET’S Do It!
strategy and governance
Recommission of VCFSE local
infrastructure
Communications strategy
relaunch

Estate Rationalisation Strategy
approved

Council Workforce strategy
developed

T abed



Appendix Two: Delivery Against Quarter Four Milestones

Complete (B) On Track (G)

| Quarter Four: Progress on a Page

Priority
Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Improving
Childrens
Lives

Milestone

Fletcher Fold - Start on site (subject to planning
approval) - 43 affordable homes for older people
Flexihall main works begin

5

G

First phase of Flexihall operator procurement
completed

Radcliffe enterprise centre prep for handover and
all UKSPF funds spent

Indoor market strategy approved

Northern Gateway - Application submission
(JPAL.1)

Free Special School 2 - detailed design
development undertaken by DfE

Free Special School 3 - feasibility study
commissioned by DfE

Create Attendance (CME & EHE) Pledge /
Strategy

Plan to improve school readiness in communities
in place

Chesham Family Hub opens

Not on track —risk identified (R)

Quarter 4 Update

Contract negotiations being finalised. Need approval to dispose via urgent
decision process. Aiming for completion end March.

Flexi Hall main works due to commence May 2025. Demolition works
currently underway.

Expression of Interest went live 18/03.

Z2c obed

Additional expenditure agreed with GMCA for 25-26 financial year. Project
subject to delay relating to construction contract
Secured UKSPF grant to develop future plans for the site.

Development Framework SPD approved at Bury Cabinet 05.03.35 and
Rochdale Cabinet 18.03.25

Feasibility concluded & approved. Procurement phase due to commence
early 2025 - awaiting further confirmation from DfE

No further progress from DfE

Work is ongoing with the pledge and strategy. This has been delayed slightly,
to ensure the voice of children and families is gathered and running
throughout. Draft plan shared with working group in April, strategy should
be in place by June and pledge by July.

The analysis of the EYFSP data has now been completed, which will enable
us to target specifics in neighbourhoods. Themes from this analysis are
threaded through the session’s delivery in Family Hubs and through the
training plan for Early Years providers. Transition sessions are planned for
the summer term and targeted transition sessions for children with SEND
are also going to be delivered.

The back garden has now been cleared and the diseased trees removed
from the outdoor area. Now wating for the work to go out to procurement,
once complete the building will then open and deliver Family Hub services
direct to the local community. All resources and equipment have been



Tackling
Inequalities

Enablers

Keeping Families together team launched

Early Help Offer re-launch

Approval of refurbished GP provision in
Whitefield to replace Uplands

NHS commissioning intentions and service
delivery priorities for emotional wellbeing and
mental health in place

Establishment of peer networks - autistic adults
and families/carers

Carers Strategy complete

Sensory Strategy complete

Extra Care Strategy complete

Communications strategy relaunch

Council Workforce strategy developed
Ramsbottom Top Park 3G Pitch complete

Estate Rationalisation Strategy approved

25/26 budget set and MTFS updated
Relaunch of LET’S Do It! strategy and governance

Recommission of VCFSE local infrastructure

purchased and are being stored. Next steps are to complete consultation
with the community about the need for services in the area.

2 members of the team have commenced in role with the other 4
practitioners set to join us in April. We are currently supporting young
people from DAT and family safeguarding who are deemed to be on the
edge of care. All paperwork i.e. practices standards, referrals etc. is with the
director for sign off - this will be presented at SMT in April.

On track for the re-launch, slight delay to the end of April, however, working
closely with comms to ensure a smooth relaunch of the family help offer.
Sale of site approved by cabinet, and Funding approval received from NHS
GM. Paper endorsed at Locality board and heath scrutiny. Awaiting final
confirmation from NHSE.

Mental Health Commissioning intentions developed through mental health
programme board and endorsed at locality board February 25. awaiting
final confirmation of support from NHS GM corporately.

Networks established

Approved at Cabinet, February 25

Approved at Cabinet, April 25

Drafted and ready for approval

Communication strategy to be presented at ELT early May.
Delayed until 25/26

Progressing very well on site, the 3G pitch is now completed and handed
back to the council. The building works for the car park on track to be
completed for 10/05/2025. The refurbished play area will be commissioned
back into use by the 11/05/2025.

Future Asset Programme (FAP) developed, creating and implementing an
estate rationalisation plan.

Complete

Relaunched w/c 24/3 at Team Bury, to be finalised imminently

Updated agreement with Bury Voluntary & Community Faith Alliance agreed

at March 2025 Cabinet

ez abed



Appendix Three: Performance Against Key Performance Indicators

Business Growth and Infrastructure

% of planning decisions granted NOMIS Claimant Count

2425

'-E

Toelal planning applications received
MNA MA Low is good
[ NA | 228.0 0) m 90.0% 0) [ NA | 5570.0 ®
“ o 58K 59K
5ok 26K
200 80%
150 0%
100 LI
S0 20%
: '-E: : 5—5.? 5555 EIE.E' g
10011 12 @1 02 03 M 0S5 06 07 0B 09 1u ni12

U

16

¢ obed



Children and Young People

% of children accessing 2 year take up of free childcare

High is good
81.5% 17.6%
8% . T6.7%
69.3%

0%
0%
20%
[ :

. FO4 - Fod FO3 PO

CORY23-24 FY 24-25

% of Pupils in Bury Schools with an EHCP

Low is good

'R 6.5%

6.5%

6.3%

6%

4%

2%

The % of pupils attending a geod or better Primary School
in Bury
High is good

[ NA | 92.8% ®

0% 92.6% @ 9L8% 92.8% 92.8% 92.8%

Jul

CLA = Percentage of CLA in foster placements
MA

| NA | 68.0% ®

e 0% 660%  agw | 660% 630%
G0%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
o - Q2 FO1 FOid
FY 23-24 ° F¥ 24-25

17

The % of pupils attending a goed or better Secondary
School in Bury
High is good

| NA | 56.1% ®

59.4%
S e 56.1% 36.1%

E' 5 @ o'gl= wiEl &g

53 35§38 ka8 3
1ﬂ |1 12 IJI ﬂ! ﬂ!-M-DS-Dﬁ-ﬂT-ﬂBEﬂBEm.11512
I'-YZZH: F¥ 24-25

EHCF: Percent of Plans issued on time. compliance at 20
weeks

High is good

| NA | 94.0% ®

1000% }f o7.0% J| 1000% J 1000%

92.0%

5.5 Sioie £ialy

$3 3335335838883
(10114200 uzfnaimius:us:mf:miuaémin'lz'
Fravas F¥ 24-25

G¢ abed



Rate of CPP per 10,000 children aged 0= 17 (latest)

Ha
NA | 58.0
560 590
| m|‘||‘|“||||
SR

'H:I;11 12I:I1-11.'Iﬂlln_ﬂi|!|' '-11

" ?_'I-GH- i I'I'.l-l-Eb-

Humber of residential placements icodes K1, K2, RI and
sl
HA

NA | 53.0

c10 | 520 || 530

| 41ﬂ lHill‘llll‘l‘

'ru,11,1z_u1nnu|mui.-.rum1u1:
UL FE o2 I 24-2s

Re = registrations for children who started on a CP plan
lewerlilast & menths)
Laow is good

NA | 23.0

1 I II I II
1!ﬂl I
uii!&IL:E a;x:za

HE FR TR P

18

Rate of CLA per 10000 children Ilatest smapshat)
H&

NA | 74.0 ®

&

800 | 790 7| Too| 7op 520810

g ] 5
d

TREF AR
o1 1:n:m§m§m;n'w5m§m§-:11E1=:
LLFIE I¥ 24-2%

9¢ abed



Health & Adult Care

ASCOF 2A - The proportion of people whao received
short-term services during the year - where no further
request was made for ongoing support

High is goad

84.6%

59.2% S0

100

e

A%

e

1Y 2124 I'F -2

Mumber of peaple an waiting list for ASC needs
sssessment Isnapshet last day of the monthi
Low is good

66.0

11140

T 'E a
-.:.:.._-. ED e
10T
AN 1]
E50 BED
SE.O
| II I I
CREIYREETIRE EERES BF
011 ;12 0 0@ 05 D8 Ds N | I b I |

I 2324 1Y 3825

Of thase who expressed outcomes the proportion of
people who have their safeguarding outcomes fully or
partially met

High is good

100.0%

100

am

Lt

“

ot

Proportion of people receiving long-term adult sacial care
in the community

High is good

3% 709% T05%
nre
b
e
s
e
e
=
e

12T
[EFIET] it aas

Proportion of completed Adult Social Care (A5C) annual
reviews in 2 ralling 12 month periad
High is good

65.1%

155 BETH RAORE 63,00

J?U.
19
531
Hrs
irs
[ic
2 gis A
D WY TR om De DS D€ Dh Db OF DE N1
1Y 2524 ¥ 2425

Proportion of people that were asked about their
outcomes (ASC)

High is good
84.0%

BRI A0 B s

0
HF%
L
I
s
s
(4

I'l'.n'I.M I'l'.M =

)2 abed



Median number of days waiting for an ASC needs The proportion of older people (65+) who were still at Total number of new carers registered with Bury Carers

assessment home 91 days after discharge from hospital Hub
) L MNA
Low is good High is good mv)
84.0 8
19.0 92.0% : «Q
0]
93.0
100% 95.0
55.0% i 85.0% — o g
" 84.0
ce 33.0 BO% B0 73.0 70.0
EL 27.0
0% &
19 0
0 18.0
40% 40
10
20% =
B E:o 5 5 H ® o ou o o=
5.2 2 % 3 a-2: 4 L 0
1011°12:01 0203 0408 0607 0B 4095100 11 12 e Fr FO4 £ ] 22 = a3
FY 23-24 F¥ 24-25
Y 23-24 FY 24-25 Y 23-24 Ff 24- 25
Number of people trained in the progression model . - R )
The proportion of people and carers who use services The propoertion of people who use services, who reported
High is good who have found it easy to find information about services that they had as much social contact as they would like
and/or support High is good
&0 38.0 70% 65.8% £5.0% s0% 47.0%
o7 0%
0%
0%
40
0% b
EN
0%
20%
20
0%
10 0%
10%
0
FO4 FQi FOz FQa FO4 0% 0%
FY 23-24 F¥ 24-25

FQ4
FY 23-24 F¥ 24-35 = 2! 24 F¥ Zd 2=

20



Operations

Highway repairs completed on time (81

m High iz goad

73.0%

Dk | Mow Dec | dan | leb C Mar
-u.llu:!mlnlulu
1Y -

o TR0 T.00%
BEOM%  GEOME
Birs
%
irs
rs
dun :

‘Waste collection {tonnes)

NA v

43937

EE
49K dﬂﬂf
I | IIHKI“K |
B3 H

m
- _“ 3 E A
,1u,|1,1r -] m_m,m,m,m or o l:,n LH

I 2524 B T

Propertion of howsehold waste recycled

m High is goaod

51.20% 51 ]S&'-
Ll
irs

'R

51.0%

511?&'; 5100

SRR I

PRiE

O]

‘2

LR R L - S R I T | O

Iy 3524 - 1T -2

Awerage time taken 1o repair sireet lighting

m Low is good

)
=}

18.6

"R “ o
LR L - n::n-l_m._nh_u.r o500
IR FTEDY

21

¥

LI F

% of council wehicles changed to lower emission versions

High is good

78.0%

SEOKE | OBO00% SEOFE SEO0% OEOOW T

li=

. B F T

Humber of missed bin collections per 100,000

m Low is good

3.0

159.0

10

. 100 1|}2.I:| . %50

o IIII I
ORI R TE AR I

IR ERIERFRE. BE. -SE-CRN.TRE B BY.TRY. BT [ N F
ITad-24 - 1Y 34-2%

]

6¢ abed



Humber of potholes reporied

HA

315.0

1740

1220

930  agn 7 I:I

Lt 3R SE IE AR SRR 3T

LU R U S T R | I I N

I'F -4

1Y 3825

31 50

Mumber of licensing applications processed

NA B
2370

26310

2060 2070 qoap

2370
2050
me 1820 170
16110 1660

1391

100 I I
[ -]
LR SF BN -IF o5 bR

w1112 0 e 0S DA DS DB D Dd DM 70 1112
1T 23-24 1Y 2%

MNumber of leisure memberships

m High is good

4628.0

Ao 43K 43K

408

B yy52i rshald
WIE 12 0 e 000k oI W
I¥ 1524 IF24-25

1.1

22

The amount ltennes! of residual howsehold waste per

household
NA ““
e
ga5 0.7 HEA R4

uo

B0

F

20

o

s [an

'Y ad-a4 - 1T 2425

0g abed



Corporate Core

% annual PDRs completed in previous 12 menths (Bury
Council!

High is good

R | 89.3%

100%

60.6%  s5g56%

.:EEEEE
E

10511 12 01

Contact centre — number of contacts received

Low is good

[ G | 27.9K

301K

30K 27.9K
203K 199K 205K
16.?K
I I 14.8K
532 5B 3HEEE

10 1112 01
- Fraz-24

% of FOIs completed on time (Bury Council)

High is good
— 91.0%
85 0% 21.9%
81.0% F 7, 5%
65.0%
57.0%
II 50.4% |

ENO\:

s

1D; 11 12 Ul

Sickness absence: average number of days lost per FTE
per year (Bury Council)
Low is good

[ G | 1.1

15
11-2-10_8-111
m |IIIII

L

o :|:: :m:ll N
s 52335554588
101112 o1 02 II-IIMIJSDGD? 08 ﬂ!l IIJ ll e
F‘f24-25 :

23

% Staff turnover (Bury Councill

) Y

Low is good Q)

«Q

12.8% ®

w

Y
15%

12.0% 12,29, 12.6% 12.7% 12.2% 12.8% 12.7%

10%
5%
0%

Average waiting time on housing register (all applications)

Isnapshot)

Low is good
B 7220

678.0
620.0 657.0
5820 960
600 5400 223.0
400
200
o NN

10:11512501 ‘0 : : l]!i IIJ 11:12

- FY23-24

.U|

=

=23
05




Mumber of househelds in temporary accommodation an
last day of ithie manth
Low is gocd

[ R | 202.0 ®

PEHEERROIEEE RS

1I:I_11_1.!

Mumber of rough sleepers currently being supported

High is good

| NA | 99.0

0]
.0
50
o

_'rn_11 1=mmmummmuu1n11
:rr.n-aq-- LLF T

24

Z¢ abed



Page 33

Commentary

Inclusive Growth:

More planning applications were approved this year compared to last.

Bury’s claimant count has improved since its peak in Quarter Three. This is impacted by
a variety of elements, only some of which the Council can control.

73% of highway repairs were completed on time during March, the highest rate achieved
of the financial year.

The number of missed bins has improved since the peak in January 2023. The year end
position (93 per 100,000) is not the lowest of the year due to negotiating off road
locations.

Average waiting time on the housing register for Bury has continually increased over the
year, averaging at 722 days at year end. This rise is due to a rise in demand for social
housing due to multiple influences including increases in private rents making private
renting unaffordable (particularly for those reliant on benefits) and changes to the
availability of private rented properties due to the forthcoming changes in the Rents
Reform Bill and increases in asylum applications.

Children and Young People:

The percentage of children accessing the 2 year take up of free childcare has reduced,
this could be due to introduction of the working entitlement in April 2024 for parents of 2-
year-olds.

A greater proportion of pupils in a Bury school have an EHCP than last year, this
increase in demand will have affected capacity to issue them on time (94 % issued within
20 weeks).

By year end Bury had a higher rate of Child Protection Plans but lower rate of CLA per
10,000 children.

Tackling Inequalities:

Despite demand challenges, Adult Social Care service have seen great progress in
continued reduction in waiting lists over the year dropping from well over 100 people
waiting to see a social worker this time last year to just 66 at the end of Quarter Four.

In Quarter Four Adult Social Care saw a small but anticipated increase in days waiting for
assessment following the Christmas period. This was quickly resolved in the following
months and maintained the positive performance standing with Bury remaining 3in
Greater Manchester for this measure.

The proportion of older people (65+) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from
hospital was 92% for Quarter Four of 2024-25, a great improvement on the 84%
proportion reported at the beginning of the financial year.

Continued rise in the number of leisure memberships, now at over 4,600, 18% increase
from March 2023.

Enabling Actions:

25



Page 34

e Bury Council has made a vast improvement in the proportion of staff with a completed
annual performance development review (PDR). Reported at 89.3% by year end, an

increase of 30%.
The increase in customer contacts reported over Quarter Four is due to the integration of

housing services contacts into the calculation.

26



Appendix Four: Corporate Plan 2025/26 Objectives and Milestones

Council
Priority

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Objective

Delivery of the All Age
Work and Skills Strategy
and Action Plan

Quarter 1 (Apr, May,
Jun) Milestones

¢ Signed off at Cabinet in
April 2025.

e Launched in June 25 at
the Bury Means
Business B2B
Business networking
event.

Quarter 2 (Jul, Aug,
Sep) Milestones

¢ Action plan/Delivery
Plan shared and
agreed with delivery
partners.

¢ Delivery commenced
and recorded.

Quarter 3(Oct, Nov,
Dec) Milestones

Quarter 4 (Jan, Feb,
Mar) Milestones

¢ Annual review against
plan and plan for
2026/27.

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Agree a Local Planin
context of Places for
Everyone

e Consultation on draft
Local Plan (ending 12
May).

e Commence analysis of
consultation
responses.

e Finalise analysis of
consultation
responses.

¢ Continue to strengthen
evidence base.

e Amend Local Plan as
necessary.

e Publication of Local
Plan (Reg 19) to
Cabinet.

e Commence
consultation on

Publication Local Plan.

e Compile all necessary
information for
submission of the
Local Plan to Secretary
of State.

27

Gg abed



Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Delivery of a new
Housing Strategy

Construction of Radcliffe
High School, Civic Hub
and redevelopment of
Radcliffe Enterprise
Centre and Market
Chambers

e Pipeline of residential
sites baselined
internally and
externally.

¢ Neighbourhoods team
training refreshed on
tenancy sustainment
and prevention of
tenancy failure.

e Recommencement of
Pathfinder project -
(reactive enforcement)
re civil penalties
against rogue
landlords.

¢ Design of access

package to Radcliffe
High School complete.

e Construction of access

package commenced.

e Internal and external
funding attracted to
support derisking of
council owned sites
and the capital works
of the former STH
estate.

¢ Acquisitions of
properties for
affordable housing.

¢ Options for family
temporary
accommodation
scoped further.

e Tender of Huntley
House and Silver
Street closed and
accommodation with
support mobilised.

e Family leasing service
reviewed with
consideration given to
option to adopt internal
model .

¢ Actions identified from
Independent Living
Offer and Sheltered
and Extra Care
Schemes reviews
implemented.

¢ Access package to
Radcliffe High School
complete

28

¢ Acquisition and
disposal of properties
and sites from/to
external Registered
Providers or

Developers supported.

¢ Development
programme for Estate
Renewal (former STH
estate) agreed
internally.

 Review report of
Pathfinder Project.

¢ Acquisitions and
disposal of properties
and sites from/to
Registered Providers
or Developers on
active schemes
completed.

¢ Arms length input to
Housing Services on
agreed Estate renewal
programme (former
STH estate), procuring
contactors as required.

¢ Evaluation of Huntley
House and Silver
Street temporary
accommodation.

o New family temporary
accommodation
service mobilised.

¢ Mobilisation of internal

family leasing scheme.

9¢ abed



Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Progress Bury Town
Centre Masterplan
projects; NORA
(Northern Rock Area),
Millgate refurbishment,
Indoor Market,
Chamberhall Phase 2

Deliver Prestwich Phase
1

Develop & deliver
township development
plans for Whitefield &
Ramsbottom

Progress the Northern
Gateway scheme:
establish MDC; Western
Access OBC and first-
phase planning

¢ Millgate refurbishment
programme agreed by
Joint Venture board.

¢ Adoption of 2025/26
business plan for
Millgate asset.

e Procurement of
Ramsbottom market
operator started.

¢ All original roof panels
of the Outdoor Market
will be removed to
make way for the new
Canopy roof.

e Travel hub under
construction
Agree funding strategy
(JV board) for phase
1b (public realm).

¢ Develop project plans
for both towns.

¢ Deliver quick win
projects such as
community and
business engagement.

¢ Northern Gateway
MDC consultation.

¢ Receipt of planning
applications for part of
the Northern Gateway.

¢ Seek to secure
agreement with
investor around
Chamberhall Phase 2
Masterplan and
delivery strategy
exercise complete for
NORA.

¢ Final option for indoor
market proposed at
Cabinet.

¢ New operator for
Ramsbottom Market to
be announced.

¢ Baseline operations
management plan for
travel hub.

¢ Funding strategy
approved by Council
for phase 1b
RIBA Stage 4 design
commences.

e Reserved matters
planning submission
for phase 2.

¢ Deliver priority projects
identified in Q1 more
detail to follow.

¢ Planning application
processing underway

29

e Outdoor Market
Canopy one up and
watertight.

e Millgate mall
refurbishment
commences.

¢ Refurbishment of
Minden House
commences.

¢ Deliver priority projects
identified in Q1 more
detail to follow.

¢ Northern Gateway
MDC established.

e Flexihall operator
appointed.

e Outdoor Market
Canopy one to be
completed mid-Feb.

e Sub structure for the
Flexihall completed.

¢ External works early
March.

e Activate operations
management plan for
travel hub.

e Enabling works for
phase 1b commence.

¢ RIBA Stage 4 design
for housing
commences.

¢ Deliver priority projects
identified in Q1 more
detail to follow.

e Target period for
determination of
planning application.

/€ abed



Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Sustainable
Inclusive
Growth

Continue to deliver the
Local Transport Strategy
including Bury
Interchange
improvements, the
Highway Improvement
Strategy and the Active
Travel Programme

Develop Annual
Sustainability Plan and
progress Climate
Change Strategy
including town centre
heat network and the EV
Charging point network

Support implementation
of flood defence scheme
by Environmental
Agency

e Interchange Phase 1
Southern Access: RIBA
stage 3 design (spatial
coordination) complete.

¢ ATF2 - Fishpool &
Pimhole Active
Neighbourhood -
construction complete.

¢ MCF Tranche 5 -
Fishpool & MCF
Tranche 6 Pimhole -
construction started.

¢ CRSTS SfA - Radcliffe
Phase - construction
underway.

¢ Continue to deliver
HIS3

e Town Centre Heat
Network Final
feasibility report
reviewed and agreed.

¢ Climate Change Officer
recruited.

¢ Options appraisal to
identify City Region
Sustainable Transport
Settlement (CRSTS)
funding opportunities
commenced.

o Electricity North West
(ENW) phase 1
diversion works
commence.

e Interchange Phase 1
Southern Access:
Planning application
approved.

¢ MCF Tranche 5 -
Fishpool & MCF
Tranche 6 Pimhole -
construction underway.

¢ CRSTS SfA - Radcliffe
Phase - construction
underway.

¢ Continue to deliver
HIS3.

¢ Heat network funding
opportunities explored
to progress to design
stage of project.

¢ GMCA procurement for
EV ChargePoint
contractor supported.

¢ Strategy for EV
infrastructure growth in
Bury devised.

o Electricity North West
(ENW) phase 2
diversion works
commence.

30

e Interchange Phase 1
Southern Access:
Contract award.

¢ MCF Tranche 5 -
Fishpool & MCF
Tranche 6 Pimhole -

construction underway.

¢ CRSTS SfA - Radcliffe
Phase - construction
underway.

e Continue to deliver
HIS3.

¢ Outline business case
& development project
design stage
commenced for town
centre heat network.

¢ Work with GMCA
regarding processing
EV ChargePoint
contractor continued.

o Electricity North West
(ENW) phase 1 and
phase 2 diversion
works complete.

e Interchange Phase 1
Southern Access: Start
of works on site.

¢ MCF Tranche 5 -
Fishpool & MCF
Tranche 6 Pimhole -
construction underway.

¢ CRSTS SfA - Radcliffe
Phase - construction
underway.

e Continue to deliver
HIS3.

e Procurement
opportunities explored
for heat network to
progress to outline
business case &
development project
design stages.

e Work with GMCA
regarding processing
EV ChargePoint
contractor continued.

e Main works on Hardys
Gate bridge and flood
gates commences in
February (subjectto
Electricity North West
works being completed
on time).

g¢ abed



Improving
Children’s
Lives

Improving
Children’s
Lives

Improving
Children’s
Lives

Improving
Children’s
Lives

Progress the SEND
Improvement Journey
(inc. free special
schools)

Continue the
transformation of the
Pupil Referral Unit offer

Progress the Children’s
Social Care
Improvement journey:
embed family
safeguarding; develop
commissioning strategy
and workforce
development

Establish an Education
and Inclusion Strategy

¢ 2nd DfE Stocktake
Review for SEND
Improvement
completed.

¢ Millwood Special
School Wing -
Procurement exercise
for contractor
completed.

e Initial technical review
of Wellington Road site
completed.

¢ Delivery, installation
and fitout of the
Whittaker Street PRU
modulars completed.

¢ Osted Annual
Conversation process
completed.

e Inspecting Local
Authority Children's
Services (ILACS)
inspection completed
(date tba).

e Work with Sector Led
partner (LCC) on
embedding the Family
Safeguarding model
completed.

e Education and
Inclusion strategy
completed

¢ Millwood Special
School wing contractor
on site, with work
continuing through the
rest of the year.

¢ Pupil Referral Unit
moved into Whittaker
Street interim site.

e Phase 1 of
environmental and
feasibility surveys
completed.

¢ Revised
commissioning function
in place for Children's
Services.

e Education and
Inclusion strategy
launched

31

¢ Annual Regional
Sector Led
Improvement peer
challenge process
begins - self-evaluation
completed

e Procurement of
Consultants on a
Design and Build
approach to RIBA 3.

e Concept designs,
spatial coordination,
planning application
completed, working
with key stakeholders
to develop school
building and site.

¢ Annual Regional
Sector Led
Improvement peer
challenge process
begins - self-evaluation
completed

¢ Confirm site
constraints and pre-
condition planning
requirements from
Statutory Consultees
i.e. Environment
Agency.

6E abed



Improving
Children’s
Lives

Tackling
Inequalities

Tackling
Inequalities

Tackling
Inequalities

Agree a multi-agency
plan in response to the
social care reforms,
outlined in Keeping
Children Safe, Helping
Families Thrive and the
Children’s

Wellbeing and Education
Bill

Deliver the Bury Locality
Plan update for health
and care transformation
in the Borough

Develop health
inequalities strategy and
deliver Adult Social Care
Plans

Accelerate development
of the Bury
neighbourhood model, in
context of GM Live Well
approach, including
economic inactivity
trailblazer pilot

e Chesham Fold
Children and Family
Hub/spoke
refurbishment
completed.

e Scope proposed long-
term estate approach
to family hubs in
Radcliffe, East Bury
and W hitefield.

¢ Development of

prevention framework.

e Secure sustainable
funding for Live Well.

e Substance Misuse
needs assessment.

e Extra care, dementia
and ageing well
strategies signed off.

e Response to GM Live
Well pilot proposal

¢ Bury Live Well
exemplar workshops
conducted
Agreement of specific
location for flagship
Live Well centre in the
borough

e Develop a proposal to

the social care reform.

e Chesham Fold spoke
family hub provision
opened

e Long-term estate
options for Radcliffe,
EastBury and
Whitefield confirmed,
and plans developed
for delivery.

* Redevelopment and
relaunch of bury

directory (digital offer).

¢ Deliver adult social
care prevention
strategy, as a sub
section of the

prevention framework.

¢ Develop annual
Commissioning plans
for extra care,
dementia and ageing
well.

¢ GM Live Well solution
developed for Bury
Live Well voluntary
sector funding

utilisation plan agreed.

e Economic Inactivity
Test and Learn - 1st
test cohort goes live

32

e Tobacco control plan
refresh Sexual Health
Needs assessment.

e Procurement of
supported living
services.

e Live Well component of

neighbourhood-based
estate strategy
developed.

e Economic Inactivity
Test and Learn -
Further cohorts
delivered.

e Finalise approach to
implementation of the
social care reforms.

e Pharmacy needs

assessment Substance

Misuse needs
assessment, Working
Well evaluation.

e Award contracts for
supported living
services and
implement.

e Delivery of 3-year
strategy for Learning
Disabilities.

e GM Live Well
proposition
implemented in Bury
Flagship Live Well
centre in operation,
driving place-based
working

e Economic Inactivity
Test and Learn - Wrap

0 abed



Tackling
Inequalities

Update the anti-poverty
action plan and evaluate
impact

e Economic Inactivity
Test and Learn -
Workshops underway
to develop placed
based test and learn
for the Economic
Inactivity Pilot linked to
Live Well.

¢ Bury submission to
GMCA complete.

¢ Approval and sign off
of Resolve Poverty
proposal on support
with new Let's Tackle
Poverty strategy for
2026/30

¢ Sign off and
commencement of
HSF 2025/26 plan
including preventative
pilot schemes.

e Commencement of first
stage of Resident
Access Plan, with pilot
surgeries beginning in
borough localities.

e Phase 2 of Revenues
and Benefits
restructure - building
face to face provision
into core service
delivery model.

¢ Approval and
recruitment of
managerial support for
Let's Tackle Poverty
work.

based at Bury Football
Club.

e Further cohorts
commissioned via
VCFA networks.
(Procurement process)

e Commencement of
work with Resolve on
new strategy including
outreach work and
information gathering
from key stakeholders
and residents on
impact of previous and
current work and
improvement areas.

e Approval of new
Collection and Support
structure (formerly
Revs and Bens) and
start of the permanent
support and advice
presence in borough
localities - Prestwich,
Bury, Radcliffe and
Ramsbottom and drop-
in surgeries at
additional, key sites
and areas.

e Commencement of
preventative pilot
schemes via HSF
funding.

33

e Winter Welfare drive to
ensure vulnerable
residents are fully
supported over the
winter months -
utilising HSF support
along with focused
drive on core delivery
of benefits, welfare
support, discretionary
housing payments,
warm hubs and winter
wellness packs.

e Approval of final Let's
Tackle Poverty
Strategy 2026/30
sought and obtained.

up pilot cohorts and
evaluation and end of
pilot report.

e Implementation of Let's
Tackle Poverty
Strategy 2026/30.

e Completion of HSF
2025/26 ensuring all
funding exhausted and
assessment of impact.

¢ Review of Resident
Access Plan including
impact assessment
and improvement/
development
opportunities for
2026/27.

T abed



Tackling
Inequalities

Tackling
Inequalities

Tackling
Inequalities

Develop the Wellness
strategy: leisure
business case and
deliver the Green Flag
Parks Programme and
Green Spaces Strategy

Delivering the Culture
Strategy through the
Community Culture
Fund, the annual co-
created events
programme and
repairing the Bury Art
Gallery and Ramsbottom
Library roofs
Implement the New
Community Safety Plan

e Investment strategy for
wellness strategy
agreed aligning to
neighbourhood working
and LET's strategy.

e Governance structure
for wellness strategy
and service agreed.

e Top Park 3G - pavilion
and play area contract
completion and tree
planting/landscaping.

¢ Maintain 15 Green Flag
Sites (13 Parks and 2
Cemetries) .

e Leisure - feasibility
work ongoing.

e Scoping out community
culture fund via UKSPF
investment as well as
events programme for
2025/26.

e Finalising governance
and process to
disseminate.

¢ CSP Delivery plan
agreed for 3-year
period.

e Keeping Town Centres
Safe This Summer plan
agreed.

e Agreement to a
sustainable finance
model for the Wellness
service Operational
Model.

e Top Park 3G - official
opening, community
use agreement/group,
lease and business
plan.

e Leisure - cabinet report
on the future of bury
leisure

e Maintain 15 Green
Flag Sites (13 Parks
and 2 Cemetries).

e Consider Findings of
the Open Spaces Sport
and Recreation Audit
to identify priorities
(Accessibility, Quantity
and Quality) .

¢ Go live with community
culture fund.

¢ BAM - roof contractor
appointed through
procurement
frameworks.

*RAMLIB - roof repair
complete.

e Commissioning of
domestic abuse safe
accommodation led by
CSP.

34

¢ Preparation for
implementation of
wellness service.

e Top Park 3G
performance
monitoring and
inspection.

e Leisure - implement
and progress decision
from cabinet report:
Green Flag Mystery
Shop Judging across
sites but aiming for
50%: Further
consideration of Open
Spaces Sport and
Recreation Audit to

Greenspaces Priorities.

e Community culture
fund launched.

¢ BAM - roof repair
commences.

o UKSPF Culture
Community Grants.

¢ Serious violence duty
needs assessment
refreshed.

e Update on delivery
presented to Overview
and Scrutiny.

¢ New finance
sustainable model for
the Wellness Service
Operation Model live.

e Top Park 3G -
complete defects, final
accounts/grant draw
down.

e Implement Green Flag
Mystery Shop
Improvements and
Feedback (Dates
TBC).

e Look to establish key
strategic priorities for
Greenspaces .

e Final reporting and
case studies for the
Bury Culture
Community Fund.

¢ Refreshed Bury
Domestic Abuse
Strategy.

¢ CSP Annual delivery
plan reviewed.

2 abed



Tackling Deliver on plans to

Inequalities improve social housing,
including
decarbonisation and
increase tenant
satisfaction

Enabling Delivery of MTFS

Actions - Savings and develop

Financial

S 2026/27 MTES
Sustainability

Enabling Refresh of the Capital
Actions - Programme
Financial

Sustainability

¢ Neighbourhoods team
training refreshed on
tenancy sustainment
and prevention of
tenancy failure.

¢ Budget holder sign-off
facilitated for the
content of their
2025/26 budgets.

¢ Methodology and
scheduling agreed for
the Zero-based Budget
Review (ZBR).

¢ 2024/25 outturn
position reviewed to
support MTFS refresh.

¢ Financial performance
including agreed
savings reviewed
monthly.

e Finalise out turn for
2024/25, presented at
July cabinet and impact
on 2025/26 programme
identified

e Submit Social Housing
Decarbonisation Fund
wave 3 bid to GMCA

¢ Establish
understanding of
current quality &
efficiency of delivery of
repairs service

e Systems in place to
ensure tenant voices
can influence decision
making

e Report 2024/25
Oultturn to July
Cabinet.

¢ ZBR reviews
completed.

e MTFS assumptions
and impact on the
forecast funding gap
refreshed.

¢ Budget proposals for
2026/27 developed.

¢ Q1 2026/27 forecast
position reported to
September Cabinet.

¢ Budget consultation
approach agreed.

¢ Zero based budget
reviews complete.

35

¢ Procurement of
delivery partners
completed for SHDF.

e Start programme of
work for SHDF.

¢ Actions identified from
Independent Living
Offer and Sheltered
and Extra Care
Schemes reviews
implemented.

¢ Cabinet engaged with
regarding budget
proposals to be taken
forward to and
presented at
November Cabinet for
decision alongside
refreshed MTFS.

¢ 2025/26 Q2 financial
performance report
presented to
December Cabinet.

e Updated capital
programme and capital
strategy presented to
cabinet in November
for approval.

e Complete programme
of work for SHDF.

¢ Annual capital housing
stock investment
programme delivered.

e Review of repairs
service complete.

e Housing asset
management strategy
finalised for 2026
onwards.

¢ Evidence of outcomes
from enabling tenant
voice within decision
making.

¢ 2026/27 Budget
recommendations
presented to Overview
& Scrutiny, Cabinet
and Council.

¢ 2025/26 Q3 financial
performance reported
to March Cabinet.

¢ 2026/27 capital
programme and capital
strategy approved at
cabinet and council in
February.

¢ abed



Enabling
Actions -
Financial
Sustainability

Enabling
Actions -
Financial
Sustainability

Enabling
Actions -
Financial
Sustainability

Production of a
Commercial Strategy

Improve strategic
commissioning and
procurement

Deliver finance
restructure and
improvement plan

Capital Programme
refreshed.

¢ Draft commercial
strategy developed to
establish principles for
commercial decisions
considered.

e Procurement and
commissioning group
established, reporting
to the Strategic
Finance Board.

¢ Procurement pipeline
for the next 18 months
published and new
gateway process for
procurement sign-off
agreed.

¢ New operating model
for Procurement and
Contract Management
identified.

¢ Consultation on phase
one of finance
restructure complete
and final structure
agreed.

e Recruitment
commenced.

¢ Draft strategy
informally shared with
members for feedback.

e Procurement and
Contract Management
new operating model
implemented.

e Programme of content
review activity agreed
and progressed, linking
to delivery of agreed
contract savings and
aligning with initial
outcomes of ZBR.

e Recruitment conducted
Phase 2 restructure
consultation
commenced.

36

e Commercial Strategy
presented at cabinet
for approval.

¢ 2025/26 savings
delivered.

e Outcomes of phase 2
consultation
considered, finalising
structure.

¢ Additional recruitment
for phase 1 complete, if
required.

¢ 2025/26 savings fully
delivered

e Further 2026/27
pipeline and strategic
contract review
priorities updated.

¢ Implementation of
phase 2 restructure.

17 abed



Enabling
Actions -
Workforce,
Culture &
Inclusion

Enabling
Actions -
Workforce,
Culture &
Inclusion

Develop HR Service
Improvement plan

Deliver the Inclusion
Strategy

e Service demand
analysis completed,
and urgent resource
request/s submitted.

e Form a women and
girls forum for Bury.

o Staff disability network
re-launched.

e Service improvement
plan draft - with short
term and long-term
resource proposals -
stakeholder
engagement.

e Workto commence on
urgent activity.

¢ Equality monitoring
guestions
standardised.

37

e Final plan approved
with budget and
workplan agreed.

e Commence sourcing
additional
capacity/capability and
workplan delivery.

¢ Workplace adjustment
process in place.

¢ Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA)
process refreshed
incorporating the
impact on health
inequalities (in
partnership with Public
Health).

e Backfill internal
movement and review
first phase of activity.

e Becoming an anti-
racist organisation
senior champions,
training and internal
reciprocal mentoring
programme in place.

Gy abed



Enabling
Actions -
Workforce,
Culture &
Inclusion

Enabling
Actions -
Workforce,
Culture &
Inclusion

Quarterly OD
programme to embed
LETS principles

Ensure continued
compliance with PDRs,
Mandatory Training and
Service Planning inc.
Health & Safety

eLaunch of LET'S
refresh brochure
through Team Bury
and partners. Update
Bury internet and
Intranet pages with
updated content.

e Launch of community
clean up dates over the
summer.

e Launch of new staff
network group Bury
Shakers.

e Launch of new
induction portal.

¢ New Local staff award
winner video launched.

e Launch of manager
dashboards and collect
feedback.

e Annual health and
safety report for
2024/25 published
including progress
against strategy
actions, KPIs and
review of all incidents.

¢ H&S risk assessments
documentation
uploaded from all
services.

e Focus on employee
reviews and mandatory

¢ New Enterprise staff
award winner video
launched.

¢ Host staff wellbeing,
reward and benefits
day.

e Focus on
apprenticeships and
development through
drop-in session and
SLT engagement from
OD team.

e Launch of the LET'S
do it brilliantly awards
nomination process.

¢ Move to cloud-based
e-learning system,
including comms
package and drop-in
sessions for staff.

e Quarterly comms on
compliance figure on
employee reviews and
mandatory training.

38

e Delivery of team
building events.

o Staff focussed
sessions over festive
period.

eHost LET'S do it
brilliantly awards.

e Annual staff survey
takes place.

e Quarterly comms on
compliance figure on
employee reviews and
mandatory training.

e Comms pushon
employee reviews and
mandatory training.

¢ All staff celebration
event held to
showcase LET'S in
action.

o abed

e Quarterly comms on
compliance figure on
employee reviews and
mandatory training.

¢ Produce end of year
performance report.



Enabling
Actions -
Transformation

Enabling
Actions -
Transformation

Implementation of the
Digital Strategy

Delivery of the Unit 4
Upgrade and change
plan

training inc Learning at
work week.

e Draft iteration of digital
strategy developed.

e Unit 4 detailed
programme plan and
Bury capacity
requirements signed off
through the programme
governance
arrangements.
(Assurance reporting to
both Performance,
Delivery and
Transformation and
Strategic Finance
Boards)

Phase 1 of the finance
restructure
implemented.

¢ Digital strategy
produced, signed off
and published.

e Phase 2 of new
Finance Structure
developed for
consultation, informed
by the Unit 4 upgrade
transformation
programme.

¢ Delivery of the Unit 4
upgrade tracked
against agreed
milestones.

39

¢ Delivery of the Unit 4
upgrade tracked
against agreed
milestones.

¢ Delivery of the Unit 4
upgrade tracked
against agreed
milestones.

)1 abed



Enabling
Actions -
Transformation

Enabling
Actions -
Transformation

Confirm the Council’'s
Corporate Estate Plan

Increase community
engagement and
cohesion through the
new VCFA SLA

e Completion of single
reconciled estate asset
register.

¢ Consolidation of the
council’s property
function within the new
Place Directorate.

e Estates Integrated
Land & Property /
Facilities Management
team.

e Commence monitoring
of 2025/26 SLA.

¢ Soft launch of Bury
Fund as single
investment
programme.

¢ Development of
cohesion activity within
CSP round table
discussions.

¢ Localised activity
around volunteer’s
week.

e Complete COPE data
collection and
surveying.

¢ Baseline first draft
corporate estates
policy.

e Complete early-stage
design and business
case for Bury Town
Hall refurbishment.

¢ Final agreement of
Memorandum of
Understanding
between VCFSE sector
and public services.

e Promotion of and
engagement through
cohesion anchor
events including
Collabor8, fringe
events at Bury Mela
and Bury Pride;
community stage at
GlastonBury.

¢ Engagement through
joint patrols within
Keeping Town Centres
Safe at Summer
activity.

40

e Baseline corporate
property protocols.

¢ Co-operative Council
Innovation Network
Policy Lab delivery with
GMCA on youth voice
in conjunction with
GMCA led Gather
Movement activity.
Refreshed Bury Hate
Crime Strategy.

¢ Localised activity for
Greater Manchester
Hate Crime Awareness
week.

3 abed



Page 49

Appendix Five: Corporate Plan 2025/26 Key Performance Indicators

Sustainable Inclusive Growth

Annual Housing completions boroughwide

Number of housing units completed in the borough which are affordable
% Housing completions on brownfield land boroughwide

Number of EV charging points

Number of air quality monitoring stations breaching nitrogen dioxide targets
Total CO2 emissions produced within the borough

Total CO2 emissions resulting from council operations

% of street lighting converted to LED

Energy efficiency of housing

Claimant Count

EET

UK Business Counts

Job Density

Jobs by Industry

Digital skills and access

Improving Children’s Lives

Number of children in Bury schools with an EHCP

% of EHCP plans issued on time (within 20 weeks)

New EHCPs issued in the last 12 months

Refusal rate for new EHCPs

Rate of permanent exclusions

Rate of CLA per 100,000

Rate of CPP per 100.000

Rate of open CIN per 10,000

Rate of referrals per 10,000

Re-referrals children with a previous referral within 12 months of their latest referral
% current frontline social workers who are agency workers

Tackling Inequalities

Economic Inactivity

How safe do you feel when out in your local area — GM Crime Survey

% of residents who are confident that they could get help from GMP in an emergency —
GM Crime Survey

% of residents who feel their community is a place where people from multiple
backgrounds get along — GM crime

Number of grants awarded through the Community Culture Fund

Average waiting time on housing register

Number of rough sleepers currently being supported

Number of statutory homeless cases open

41




Page 50

¢ Number of households intemporary accommodation

e Social Housing Improvement

e Vaccinations — priority groups

e 2.5 year checks

e Waiting time for ASC needs assessment

e % of adult social care providers rated good or outstanding

e |APT waiting times % 6 weeks or less from referral

e Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers (APS) (1 year range)

e Percentage of physically active adults

e Percentage of physically active children and young people

e Overweight (including obesity) prevalence in adults (18+ yrs)

e Reception: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity)

e Year 6: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity)

e MMR for two doses (5 years old)

e Under 75 mortality rate from all circulatory diseases (Persons, 1 year range) (Directly
standardised rate per 100,000, includes heart disease and stroke)

e Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease

e Cancer screening coverage: cervical cancer (aged 50-64)

e Cancer screening coverage: bowel cancer

e School readiness: percentage of children achieving a good level of development at the
end of Reception

e Number of children in relative low-income families (under 16s)

Enablers ‘

% savings delivered

Underspend in year

Forecast funding gap MTFS

% Council Tax Collected

% Business Rates Collected

% PDRs completed

% mandatory training completed

H&S Assessment

Sickness absence

Staff turnover

Total number of VCFA volunteers

Pulse Survey

Improvement in the borough rank within GM for digital connectivity based on the % of
people over 16 who state they have not used the internet inthe last 6 months or ever.
e GM Neighbourhood Floor Target - % of premises unable to access download speeds
of at least 30 mbits/s

42



Page 51 Agenda Item 8
Classification Item No.
Open

Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny

Meeting date:

04t June 2025

Title of report:

Development of a work programme for 2025/2026

Report by:

Josh Ashworth
Senior Scrutiny Officer

Decision Type:

For Information

Ward(s) to which All
report relates
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This report sets out details the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee along with a
Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol to assistin the development of a Work Programme

for 2025/26

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Option 1 (Recommended)

1. Note the contents of the report

Option 2 (Not recommended)

1. Reject the above recommendation



Page 52

1.0 SUMMARY

This report sets out details the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee along
with a Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol to assist in the development of a Work
Programme for 2025/26

2.0 MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION/DECISION

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are requested to:

Agree and set an Annual Work Programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year, in accordance
with Committee’s remit, previous work and the Work Programme and Perioritisation
Protocol.

3.0 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

3.1 Terms of reference

e To review and scrutinise the decisions made or actions taken in connection with the
discharge of any of the Council’s functions.

e To review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy
objectives, performance targets and all particular service areas.

e To set up, appoint and monitor Scrutiny Panels (set up to carry out reviews of
policies, services or the impact of decisions).

e To make recommendations to the Cabinet and/or appropriate Committee and/or
Council arising from the outcome of the Scrutiny process.

e To review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in connection with the
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions.

e Oversight of the provision, planning and management of the Council’s resources
including its budget, revenue borrowing assets and audit arrangements.



Page 53

e Oversight of the Council's corporate plans and strategies and the monitoring of the
corporate plan and departmental plans.

e To scrutinise outside bodies and partners relevant to the Council.
e To receive all reports from external inspectors.

3.2  Scrutiny Structure

The diagram below sets out the current scrutiny structure.

Council
A Health and
Wellbeing
Board/Strategic
Cabinet Commissioning
Board
Call In Health
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE | Scrutiny
CHILDREM AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY Committee
COMMITTEE

Housing and
Performance Sub
Group

* Owerview Project Group

40 WORK PROGRAMME 2025/26

4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required to set a work programme for
2025/2026

4.2 A well thought out and effective Work Programme will allow work to be time-tabled
to ensure completion and help determine when and what resources may be needed.



Page 54

4.3  Within the Programme it is important to ensure that there is the capacity to provide
an urgent response to issues that arise during the year and need to be dealt with at
short notice. Scrutiny of Key Executive decisions will form a large element of the
Committee’s work during the year and it is important that flexibility is built into the
Work Programme to allow for this to take place.

4.4  To assist in the development of an outcome focussed, measureable, realistic and
timely Work Programme, a Prioritisation Protocol is set out below. The Protocol sets
out some initial questions to be asked of proposed topics and includes further
questions and filters to help achieve a prioritised and deliverable work programme.

40 SUGGESTED ITEMS ARISING FROM LAST YEAR

During last year's work, the Committee’s work programme included the following items:

Regeneration
o Progress updates on key regeneration projects:
o Local Plan
Northern Gateway
Radcliffe Hub
Prestwich Village
Bury Mill Gate
Bury Market and ‘Flexi Hall’
o Housing Development
Communities
o Community Safety Update from Greater Manchester Police (GMP), including:
o Crime reduction initiatives
o Technological advancements
o Partnership working with local organisations
e Anti-Poverty Strategy
e Crime and Disorder
Housing
e 12-Month Housing Update
« Housing Subgroup Update
Finance
e Year-End/Quarter 4 Corporate Plan Performance Report 2023/24
e Submission of the Productivity Plan
o Budget Update Report
e Year-End Outturn Financial Position
o Quarter 2 Finance Report
e Housing Revenue Account Budget
e Medium Term Financial Plan and Revenue Budget
o Council Tax Base and Resolution and Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit Report
e 2025-26 Treasury Management Strategy
o 2025-28 Capital Strategy

O O O O O



Page 55

o Dedicated Schools Grant
o Budget 2025/26 Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA)
o Chief Finance Officer Statement
o Savings Templates
Corporate
e Health and Safety Annual Report
o Corporate Plan

Some of the above, particularly the financial and performance reporting mechanisms, will
form part of this coming year’'s programme as a matter of course. The above list does not
represent all the issues looked at during the year as consideration was also given to the
issues of Ombudsman complaints regarding the Council.

50 CONCLUSION

The information contained in this report provides an outline of the terms of reference for
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee along with a Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol
to assist in setting an outcome based, focussed, balanced and deliverable work
programme based on the priorities of Bury Council and its residents.



Page 56

Appendix 1

Prioritising

Topics for Scrutiny

When deciding which items to include on the Scrutiny Work Programmes it can sometimes become
confusing and difficult to identify the topics which are mostimportant or worthy of scrutiny.

Section1 - At the outset

When topics have beenidentifiedas possible ScrutinyWork Programme items, Members and their support
Officers should ask the following of each topicidentified;

Section2 -

Does the issue have a potential impact for one or more sections of the population? Yes —
Leave on Work Programme

Is the issue strategic and significant? Yes— Leave on Work Programme

Is there a clear objective for scrutinising this topic? Can objective be identified —Yes leave on
Work Programme

Is there evidence to support the need for scrutiny? Yes— Leave on Work Programme

What are the likely benefits to the Council and its customers? What do we hope to achieve?
Ifidentifiable—Leave on Work Programme

Are you likely to achieve a desired outcome? Can benefits to Council and customers be
achieved?

What are the potential risks?

Are there adequate resources available to do the activity well?

Is the Scrutiny activity timely? Yes— Leave on Work Programme

Criteriato Reject

Once the questions above have been answered and the topics are still included on the Work Programme,
Members should move onto the followingrejection filters:-

Rejectif;

Section3 -

Theissueis beingexamined elsewhere e.g. officer group, other Councillor group.
Issue was reviewed less than 2 years ago

New legislation or guidance expected withinthe year

No scope forscrutiny to add value/makea difference

The objective cannot be achievedin the specified timescale

Changesare currently being /have recently been implemented

Prioritisation of Topics

The following questions should be asked when looking to prioritise potential work programme items.

Publicinterest

Has the issue been identified by Members through surgeries and other contact with
constituents?(on how many occasions —more occasions warrants a higherscore).

Has a userdissatisfaction with the service beenidentified? (complaints).

Topicidentified through Market Surveys/Citizens Panel.

Has the issue been covered in the local media?

Internal Council priority



Page 57

e Council Priority area?
e Thereisahighlevelof budgetary commitmentto the service/policy area (as percentage of total
expenditure)
e There has been apattern of budgetary overspends
e Theserviceisa poor performer(evidence from performance indicators/benchmarking).
External Factors

e Central Government priority area
e Issuesraised by External Audit Management Letter/External Audit Reports.
e Keyreportsor new evidence provided by external organisations on key issue.

Community impact/links with Community Strategy

Equality Impact and considerations:

Assessment of Risk:

The following risks apply to the decision:

Risk / opportunity Mitigation




Page 58

Consultation:

Legal Implications: N/A

Financial Implications: N/A

Report Author and Contact Details:

Josh Ashworth

Senior Scrutiny Officer
Democratic Services
J.R.Ashworth@bury.gov.uk



mailto:J.R.Ashworth@bury.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	6 Corporate Plan 2025/26 and Quarter 4 Performance Report
	8 Forward Planner 25/26

